iN THE HIGH COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA
(GAUTENG SOUTH DIVISION)

Case No: 10845/2012

In the matier heilween:

ANALIZE VAN TONDER ' First Applicant
WERMA BELEGGINGS (PTY) LTD Second Applicant
PEGMA MINERALE (PTY) LTD Third Applicant
and

FNB TRUST SERVICES (PROPRIETARY) LIMITED

(Registration No. 1986/003488/07) ‘ First Respondent
FIRSTRAND BANK LIITED '
{Registration No. 1929/001225/06) . Secaond Respondent

APPLICANT'S REPLYING AFFIDAVIT

|, the undersigned,

ANALIZE VAN TONBDER,

do hereby make cath and state:

1. | amr an adult businesswoman and the First Applicant in this application. 1 am
still residing at TG rited States .

of America.
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The contents of this affidavit are within my personal knowledge, unless
otherwise stated, and are true and correct. To the extent that legal sube
missions are advanced herein, they are made on the basis of legal advice

received from my legal representatives, which advice | believe to be correct.

| refer to my founding affidavit jurai‘i March 2012, and confirm that | depose
to this affidavit in my personal capacity, as well as my capacity as the
director, sole shareholder and duly authorised representative of both the

Second and Third Applicants.

i have read the answering affidavit deposed to by Barbara Catherine Botha

on behalf of the Respondents, and respond thereto as follows.

Apart from raising a number of procedural issues (which | respectfully submit
are without substance and do not detract from the Applicants' entii{ement to
the relie! sought in terms of the notice of motion), the Respondents’ main
opposition to this application appears to be essentially based on the

foiibwing contentions:

54 The accounts as referred 1o in paragraphs 1.1 to 1.8 of the notice of
motion, are not bank accounts as such but merely “ransaction history

statements”ihat have been created by the First Respondent.
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The First Respondent has already prov?ded all decumentation of this

nature to the Applicants,
5.3  The Applicanis have in any event (in the founding affidavit) failed -

5.3.1  to properly identify which statements have not been made

available by the Respondents;

5.3.2 1o identify the rights which the Applicants are seeking to
exercise or protect, and why these statements are required

for this purpose.”

i respecliully submit that # the Respondents’ in limine defence, as
sum.marised in paragraph 5.1 above, should be taken at face valua, they
hay;.e clearly misconstrued the nature of the reiief that the Applicants are
seeking. In paragraph 13 of the answering affidavit, the Respondents
compiain that what has been requested by the Applicants and what has in
facl been supplied (by the First Respondent) are not bank accounts, but

merely “an accounting” from the First Respondent of “what it has done”.

The Respondents then proceed 1o describe that gach account in questi{fm is

13

merely “a transaction history
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The Applicants accepl that the documents in issue are in essence an
accounting from the First Respondent of the transactions it had conducted
on the various accounts, and do not relate to conventionat bank accounts

that are normally being conducted al a financial institution.

The fact remains, however, that if regard is had o the notice of motion, this

is exactly what the Applicants are requesting, namely access o the First

Respondent's records that would reflect fhe full transaction_history of the

“

relevant accounts. That such accounts have indeed been created by the
First"Respondent (for the purposes as explained in ihe answering affidavit),

is not in issue.

To highlight the fact that these documents have (according to the
Respondents, incorrectly) been deseribad as bank accounts, is with réspect

merely to divert the attention from the teal issue,

As is apparent from annexures “B1" o "33" to the founding affidavit, the First
Respondent, who created these stalements, itself described them as "Bank

Statement/Bank Staat”, Anngxures B4 and “B5* are entifled "Transaction

Staternent” for the relevant period to which each docurnent perains.

In fact, as explained to Lombard and Fowlie during the meeting of 4
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_ February 2011, the First Respondent has for all intents and purposes always

regarded these accounts as "bank gccounts®, for the following reasons:

12.1  Previously, the First Respondent - upon receiving instructions to
administer a deceased estate - would have opened a current account

for the estate at an appropriate FNB branch.

12.2 A ¢hegue book wodld hav_e _been issued'for such account, and all
financial transactions (cash receipts and payments) that were
conducted during the winding-up of the estate, would have been
conducted by means of such account.

123 In due course, thie procedure had been changed, in that no separate’
bank account would have been opened for a deceased estate.
Instead, an “internal account” (also referred to as a “sub-account™
would have been created by the First Respondent, which would be

linked to the First Respondent's general trust banking account. The

B ]

latter account would be used to conduct fransactions on behall of an
estale. The transaclions in respect of each estate would then be
processed and reconciled on a daily basis, and approximately a day

later be reflected on the internal account of egach estaia.

12.4 Whilst discussing tne aforesald procedure during the meeting of 4
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February 2011, Lombard and the First Respondent's representatives
were ad idem that the transaction statemenis in respect of such
infernal accounts were for all intents and purposes cash-flow
stétemems, similar to bank statements in respect of a normal bank

account.

(i shall for the sake of convenience coniinue to refer to each such
transaction history, whether in electronic format or printed version, as an

account.)

1 respactiully submit 1hat_for the First Respondent to highlight the fact that

these accounts have been incorrectly described as bank accounts, does not

assist in resolving the issue,

The essential issue that falls to be delermined Is a faclual one — has the First
Respondent indeed provided the Applicants with a full and complete
transaction history in respect of these accounts. The simpie answer is no, as
is apparent from the relevant passages in the founding affidavit, read with

the Respondents' reply thergto,
In this regard, | draw attentionio —

15.1 paragraphs 27.1 to 27.8 of the founding affidavit, where | described
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the various agcounts at issue;

paragraphs 29 and 30 ({particuiarly paragraphs 30.1 to 30.8) of the
founding affidavit, read with annexures "C1" lo C6 thereto, that
contain a full description of the statements (with reference to each

account in question) that were initially found fo be missing;

paragraphs 32 to 34 of the founding affidavit, read with annexures
01T to "D4" thereto, where | described the statemenis that were stiff

found to be missing, notwithstanding the receipt of a large volume of

documentation from the First Respondeng_' {on 13 October 2010}, in -

responsge to annexures "C1" fo "CBY;

Lombard's further request in annexures "D1" to "D4", that a full saf of
statements in respact of all the accounts in question, be made
available for the reasons as explained in the first and second

unnumbered paragraphs of annexure "D4™;

the fact that at the meeting of 4 February 2011 (which took piace after
the exchange of the aforesaid communication between Lombard and
the First Respondent), the First Respondent's representatives

indicated —
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15.5.1 that they fully understood and appreciated why the Applicants

required the missing stalements; and

18,52 that the missing slatements would be made available
(notwithstanding certain practical difficuities that might be

encountered in order to locate the stalements prior to 1996);

15.6  the fact that, except for the subseguent production of a limited
number of statements in respect of only four accounts (account
numbers 0008780, 0008781, 0005508 and 00077098) and aniy for the .c:g@s /
L4

period from 1 January 1996, the other accounts that had been found WM e

to be missing (as described in paragraphs 30.1 to 30.4 of the
founding affidavit), were again not provided,

s

157 the fact that.-

15.7.1 although the First Respondent had, at that stage,. first alleged
that the micrefiche films lhat contained the siatements that
were siill missing, could not be jocated, it subsequently (on
23 May 2011} informed the Applicants that the "microfiche
trust account records” that confained these rmissing

statements, had been located;
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15.7.2 natwithstanding the receipt of a further quantity of document-
tation from the First Respondent {on 14 July 2011}, such
documentation again did not contain the statements that the
Apnlicants had previously indicated were still missing (as
described in paragraphs 30.1 to 30.4 of the founding

affidavit);

15.8 the fact that my assertion that the statements as referred to in the

previeus paragraph, have still not heen provided, which assertion is

supported by a detailed explanation of the relevant facts, has been
met by a bald denial by the First Respondent (with no explanation as

to when, where and how they had indeed been provided).

| emphasise thai, as is evident from the aforegoing summary of the material

facts, the missing statemenis as described in paragraphs 30.1 to 30.4 of the

founding affidavit, have sliil not been provided. With regard to the statements

as described in paragraphs 30.5 to 30.8 of the founding affidavit, cnly a
O RS trct)

Hmited number of such statements have been provided. At the meeting of 4

February 2011, Lombard was told that these siatemenls commenced in

Novermber 1994. However, no statements were eventually provided in

raspect of the peridd from November 1994 1o January 1996. Moreover, the

slatements that had been provided, as referred to in paragraph 15.6 above,

were patenlly incorrect and unreliable, for the reasons as already explained
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in annexures "D4", "E2" and "E3" to the founding affidavit.

it was also impossible to recencile the transactions that are reflected on
these statements, with tlje slatemants in respect of the same accounts that
had previously been provided to the Applicants. (I have explained the
reasons for this in paragraphs 37 to 41 of the founding affidavit). Hence the
Applicants' request to have access to the First Respondent's records that

would show the full fransaction history in respect of these accounts.

The Respondents further complained that the Applicants have failed io
identify why they are entitled to request access to these records, and what
the relevance is of such access io the rights that the Applicants seek 1o

protect.

1 submit that these aspects have been adequately dealt with in paragraphs

53 to 57 of the founding affidavit. | reierate that —

19.1 asg is evident fram annexure "E3" to the founding affidavit, rental

payments in an aggregate amount of af least R908 353-28, {0 which

the Second and/or Third Applicants were entitled and that should
have been paid into one or more of the accounts that had been
created and administered by the First Respondent on their behall,

could not be traced by Lombard in the slalements that had been
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made available (| incorrectly included, In paragraph 41 of the founding

affidavit, the amount of R1 617 337-92 in this calculation. [ have
recently recaleulated the missing rental payments, and concluded that

they in fact amount to R986 124-12);

only a proper reconciliation of ali the issued renial statements on the
one hand, with a complele lransaction history of the relevant

accounts on the other hand, would indicate a possible explanation for

these missing funds {or perhaps an even grealer discrepancy ihan

has hitherto been revealed);

the Applicants and | stand to gain financially, directly and indirectly, in
the ovent of these rental payments, alternatively damages in leu
thereof, being recovered. 1 submit that this aspect requires no further
elaboration for present purposes and will be further addressed in

argument at the hearing of this matter.

20, The Respondents further contend that —

201

it is impossible to establish why the accounts in issue {for example,
Egtate Late F J van Tonder) have any relation to the management
and administrative functions in respect of the Second Applicant's

business and ihe Second and Third Applicants' respective properly
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portfolios; .

20.2  the Applicants have failed to set out wilh any clarity the history and
background to the relationship between the Applicants and the

Respondents.

I pause to emphasise that none of the abové objections were prevbusiy
raised by the First Respondent's representatives (as a reason why it was not
able or obliged to comply gwith- the Applicanis' request for the production of
statements), neither in the correspondence as referred 1o in the founding
affidavit, nor during the meeting of 4-' February 2011, This sewe_s to lusirate

the tachnical (and unfounded) nature of these objections.

" The Respondents' contentions referred fo in paragraph 20 above, are

unfounded. | reiterate, as | have already explained in the founding affidavit,

that -

22.1 my late father's property portfolio consisted of commercial properties
that were regislered in the names of bolh the Second and Third
Applicants, whilst the business that was conducted by means of such
properties {i.e. the leasing and maintenance thereof) was conducted
nrimarily in the name of the Second A;ip}icant {rentalincome was also

derived by means of the letting of the Third Applicant's properties, but
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not fo the same exient as in the case of the Second Respondent);

after my father's death, the First Respondent continued to manage
and administrate this business, initially in #s capacity as the
administrator of thé testamentary frust created in lerms of my late
father's will, and subsequeantly (after the termination of tha trust on 21

July 2003) on my behalf and for my personal interest;

when Lombard was appeinted to conduet a full forensic investigation

into 1he financial affairs of both the Second and Third Anplicants, he

. required infer alia all the statements in respect of all t%je accounts that

had been conducted in the name of the Apolicants during the relevant

period,

this included the period of November 1989 unlit 20 Cecfober 2006,
during which time the First Respondent performed the managsment
and administrative funclions in respect of the Second and Third

Applicants’ respective businesses and property portfolios.

However, whilst performing the functions as referred to in paragraph 22.2

| above, the First Respondent did not use the Second and Third Applicants’

existing FNB current accounts. Instead, in managing the Second and Third

Applicanls’ funds (receipt of income as well as payment of expenditure), the
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First Respondent used its general trust banking account with the Second
Respendent (as referred 1o in paragraph 21.23 of the answering affidavit)
and, at the same time, crealed the accounts as described in paragraphs 1.2

and 1.3 of the notice of motion (read with annexures "B1" to "B3" therelo).

The First Réspondent's aforesaid modus operandi was disclosed to the
Applicants by the Fust Respondent's representalives during the meeting cn

4 February 2011,

At this maeeting, the First Respondent's representatives further explained

that —

254 the accounts as referred ¢ in paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3 of the notice of
motion, were created in order thal all monetary transactions on behall
of the Second and Third Applicants in relation to the day-to-day.
running of their respective businesses (these were in the first instance
conducted by means of the First Respondent's trusl banking account)
sould also be refiecled (by means of journal entries) in a separate
astate account” that had been created for each enlity (these are the
“internal” or “sub"” accounts that | have referred to in paragraph 12.3

above);

550 the accounts as referred lo in paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3 of the nclice of
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motion, were in due course (apparently during 1994) replaced by the
accounts as referred to in paragraphs 1.5 and 1.6 of the notice of

rmotion, and used for the same purpose;

the nett proceeds of the monetary transactions conducted on behalf
of the Second and Third Applicants (as recorded in the accounts
referred to in paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3 of the notice of nﬁotit_}n), WEere
from Ume to time allocated to me personally, by means of a journal
entry in the account as referred to in paragraph 1.4 of the notice of
moticn. This account was also utilised to account for cash-flow
transaclions resulting from lhe distribution of capital from the
testamentary trust, after the termination thereof. This account was
later replaced by the account as referred {o in paragraph 1.7 of the

notice of motion;

lhe account as referred to in paragraph 1.8 of the notice of motion,
was created to reflect the management of my personal assets/

invesiments, which were distributed to me from ihe trust;

the accounts as referred fo in paragraphs 1.4, 1.7 and 1.8 of the
notice of motion, were therefore created and utilised to manage tie

aseets that | had received from the trust.




26.

27.

28.

Page 16

During his investigations Lombard estabEished that, on variou;\; occasions,
funds fo which the Second and/er Third Applicants were entitled, had been
paid into the estate account of the late F J van Tonder {the account
mentioned in paragraph 1.1 of the notice of motion). Lombard §urther-
established that from time 1o time funds had flowed between the various
accounts in question. This should not have happened and appeared to be an

irreguiarity.

Transactions conducted on behalf of the estate of my fate father (as part of

the adminisiration of his estate) should have been refiected (and accounted

for) in the estate account conly. The converse applies in respect of the
transactions conducted on behalf of the Second and Third Applicants. Their
existing bank account at the Second Respondent, or at best the accounts as
referred to in paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3 of the notice of motion, should have
heen used for this purpose. There is no reason why funds should have
fiowed between the estate account on the one hand, and the accounts that
were -created in the names of the Second and Third Applicants. (whose
commercial activities were not ceased or interrupted when my father passed

away) on the other.

During his investigations Lombard esiablished a possible reason for the flow

of funds between the various accounts, as referred to in paragraph 26

above. Rental payments thal were received on behalf of the Second and/or
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the Third Applicants, ware _sométimes (épparenﬂy inadvertently) paid inle the
estate account of the late F J van Tonder. This is merely one example why

the flow of funds bstween the various accounts shouid be investigated.

The full extent and consequences of these irregulariies can only be
established and assessed once the full transaction history of all the accounts
in issue have been made available. The fact that these accounts are all
inter-refated {having regard to the manner in which the First-Respondent had

conducted same)} has never been in issue.

The First Respondent's.representatives are well aware of the manner in
which these accounts have been utilised and interfaced, and why they are all
inter-related, | had no reason to expect (or to foresee), prior to the faunching
of this application, that the Respondents would oppose it, inter aliz on the
grounds as set out In paragraphs 14 1o 18 of the answering affidavit. insofar
as my elaboration on this aspect, as set out In the preceding paragraphs,
may be regarded as new matier (which | have been advised is ﬁoi the case}, .
the introduction thereo! arises from .the aforesaid grounds of opposition.
Nevertheless, 1 would have no objection if the Respondents be given an
opporiunity, if necessary, to file a supplementary affidavit in response

thereto.

| now turn o reply serfafim 1o the remaining allegations in the answering
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aftidavit, insofar as it may be neces-ééry. i deny every allegation that is
confrary to or irreconcilable with the allegations contained in the founding

affidavit, and not specifically dealt with herein.

32, -Adparagraph 11

32,1 The Respondents' comentioné in this paragraph are unfounded, |
sland by my asseriicn that ‘the records requested have been

adsquately identified.

32,2 With regard to the identification of the requestor, 1 submit that this is.
clear from the information contained in the formal request for access
in terms of saction 33(1} of the Promotion of Access to [nformation
Act, No. 2 of 2000 ("PAIA", read with the annexures thereto (these
include, inter alia, all the annexures to the founding aﬁidév’it}. If regard
is had to the lafter, it is clear thal the Second and Third Applicants
and 1, represented by Mr L S Joubert of Millers incorporated, were the

requestors.

a3, Adparagraph 14

33.1 | deny that there was non-compliance with the formal requirements

for the request, with regard to the rights which the requestors sought




34.

33.2

Page 19

to be exercised or protected. lf regard is had to section F, paragraph
1 of the reduest (annexure "J3" to the founding affidavit) read with the

annexares thereto, these rights have been adeguately identified.

| have already dealt with the fact that these rights have been

adequately described in the founding afficavit.

Ad paragraph 15

| have already dealt with this complaint in the preceding paragraphs.

Ad paragraph 16

35.1

35.2

It is conceded that the desoription‘ of the accounts in respect of the
Second and Third Applicants in paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3 of the notice
of motion, as well as in annexure “C3", is incorrect. The cotrect nare

of each company should have been stated.

However, as is apparent from annexure “C1", the Secand and Third
Applicants have been properly cited in the heading of this letler,
which contained the datail of the requestors as well as the records

requested.
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(f thé contention in the last éenience of this paragrabh is inlended fo
pertain to all the documents as described in paragfaphs 1.1 to 1.8 of
the notice of motion, then this contention is, to the knowledge of the
Hespondents, untrue. | _have aiready ‘ indicaled above which

statements (of those that were originally found to be missing) have

~ stiil not been provided by the Respondents.

Ad paragraph 17

| deny the allegations contained in this paragraph. | have in any event

clarified any uncerlainty that may have existed in regard to this aspest,.in the

preceding paragraphs.

Ad paragraph 18

374

are

37.3

I deny the allegations contained in this paragraph.

[ stand by my assertions in regard to this aspect, as set out in the

founding affidavit.

f relterale that any substantial damages that may be recovered from
the persons and/or entilies as referred lo in paragraphs 55 and 65 of

the founding affidavit (which include the First Respondent or any of ifs
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related depariments/divisions) will be to my financial benefit {arising
from an increase In value of my shares in the Second Applicant, as

well as dividends that | may bs entitled o).

38.  Ad paragraph 20

38.1

38.2

38.3

I deny that afl the relevant statemenis that existed, have been

produced.

This contention contradicts the position previously taken by the First
Respondent in regard to the:Appiicants‘ request for slatements.
During the telephone conversation between the pariies' respective
represeniatives, as referred to in paragraph 60.4 below, Ms Barbara
Botha (who represented the First Respondent) conceded that the
Applicants had not been provided with all the transaction hislory

slatements.

However, her explanation as io why it would have been difficult to
comply with this request, was that the First Respondent would have
had to utilise its trust banking account with"the Secend Respendent
for this_purpose, and "black out” the transactions that related to other
estates, which would have been an exiremely difficult and arduous

task to perform.
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Ad paragraph 21.2

| deny the allegations in this paragraph. My late father's will merely provided

1

that he begueathed the relevant assefs in his estate aan my

administrateur in Trust ... ", without naming (or describing) the trust.

Ad paragraph 21.9

40.1 | deny the allegations contained in this paragraph.

40.2 il has never been necessary for the First Respondent to attempt to
"decipher” whal records have been requested. This was made clear
on many occasions. The alleged incorreclincomplete description of
the records and the First Respondeni's inability to locate same as &

cozisequence thereof, has never been raised previously.

40.3 The only issue (in the sense of merely a difficulty) ever raised by the
First Respondent was in respect of the bank statements prior to 19686,
in that they were stored on microfiche film, and that it was not at that

stage known at which branch the microfiche fim that would contain

the missing statements, could be located.
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Ad paragranhs 21.10 and 21,11

411 The description of the First Respondent's functions (after the '

termination of the frust) in these paragraphs, is incomplete.

41.2 The First Respondent also performed the function of managing
and administraling the Second and Third Applicants’ respective
husinesses, as well as the Second and Third Applicants’ respective

properly portfolios.

41.3  Moreover, in addition 1o.managing my own investment portfolio, the

First Respondent also managed my personal bank accounts {ie. a

credit card account as well as a savings account).

Ad paragraphs 21.12 and 21,13

My understanding of the purpose of this account {(as conveyed fo Lombard
during the meeting of 4 February 201 1y was that it also reflecied monelary
{ransactions (capital, income as wei% as expenditure) that had been
conducted on my behalf in respect of capital acquired from the trust aﬁd paid
into {or out of) the First Respondent's trust banking account with the Second

Respondent.
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Ad paragraphs 21.14 and 21.15

| have not received, on a regular basis and chronclegically, all the
statements in respect of all the accounts. The Applicants therefore 'req_uest

access 1o the Respondents' records that contain the full fransaction history

of all these accounts.

Ad paragraph 21,16

The allegations contained in this paragraph are denied. [ have already dealt
with the First Respondent's failure to produce the missing statements, in

breach of its undertaking to do so.

Ad paragraphs 21.18 and 21.19

45.1 1 deny that all the statements In issue pertain to transactional histories

only in respect of the estate of my lale father.
45.2 | reiterate that the First Respondent also created -
4521 accounts that reflected the daily operational transactions that

were conducted in the course of the Second and Third

Applicants’ respecﬁve businesses (these have been identified
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in paragraphs 1.2, 1.3, 1.5 and 1.6 of the notice of motion);

and

45.2.2 accounts that reflect, apast from transactions pertaining to
investments made on my behalf, also capital and incomel
trgnsactions that had been concluded on my behalf (this
account is referred o in paragraph 1.8 of the notlice of

motion).

Ad paragraphs 21.20 and 21.21

46.1  There was no raason to create these accounts, in order to reflect ihe

transactions that wers conducted on behalf of the Second and Third

Applicants.

48.2 The exisling bank accounts of these companies with the Second

Respondent, should have been utilised tor this purpose.

Ad paragraphs 21.22 and 24.3

471 It is unclear to which “agreement” reference is being made in this

paragraph.
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| deny that —

47.2.1 | have received all the quarterly stalements in respect of the

various accounts;

47.2.2 these statements constitule a complete and satisfactory
accounting by the First Respondent of the functions it had
performed on behalf of myself and the First and Second

Applicanis.

48.  Ad pzragraphs 21.23 and 21.24

i refterate that —

481

48.2

there was no reason for the First Respondent to utilise the trust
banking account in respect of transactions that were concluded in the
normal course of the Second or Third Applicants’ respective

husinesses; and

{ ombard's investigation has revealed that transactions had been
recorded in the trust bankihg account (i.e. payments into or from this
account) as well as the separate accounts that were created for the

Second and Third Applicants (as referred to in paragraphs 2 and 3 of
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the notice of motion}, which transactions were concluded in the
normal course of the Second and Third Applicanis’ respective
businesses (and therefore unrelated lo the administration of the

deceased eslate).

Ad paragraphs 21.25 and 21.26

491

48,2

49.3

As regards the incarrect use of the word "bank"account, | respectiully
submit that it will serve no purpose to becoms involved in an exercise

in nomenclatura,

The Applicants request access to the First Respondent's records that

contain the full transaction history in respect of the accounts at issue.

As demonstrated in paragraphs 6 to 12 above, the fact that these
documents have been incorrecily described as "bank statements’,
could not have caused any uncertainly as to what has been

requested.

Ad paragraphs 22 and 23

I'deny the allegations in these paragraphs.
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Ad paragraph 24.1

51.3

51.4

51.5

The only reason why | alluded to the question of prescriplion in
paragraphs 58 and 59 of the founding affidavit, was to explain why
any substantial delay in the prosecution of this application could be

prejudicial to the Applicants.

However, as advised by my legal representatives, | pointed out that it
would be premature to address the issue of prescription in the

founding alfidavit,

It is unfortunate that the Respondents now embrace this potential
issue as a defence in what is in essence pre-trial litigation, without the
Court having had the benefit of a full disclosure of all the relevant

facts and circumstances,

| have been advised that PAIA was intended fo foster a cuiture of
transparency and accountability in public as well as private bodies, by
giving effect to the right of access to information, and to promote a
society in which people have effective access to information to enable

them to more fully exercise and protect all of their rights. .

K réspect%ully submit that the Respondents’ ploy fo raise prescription
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in opposition to the application, is unwarranted, inappropriate and

contrary to the objectives of PAIA,

Suffice it to say that, the reason why it has become necessary to
invesligate the transaction. history of the accounts that form the
subject-matter of this apptication, only came fo my knowledge after

Lombard had commenced his forensic investigation in July 2010.

52, Adparagreph 24.2

52.1

52.2

I admit that | was in a position "fo take charge of my affairs! after the
termination of the trust. Howevér, for the reasons as explained in the
founding affidavit, | entrusted the conduct and management of the
husinesses thai | have effectively inherited, to the First Respondent,

In fact, the First Respondent strongly advised me that, given my

~ personal circumstances, it would be in the best interests of myself as

well as the Second and Third Applicants, that the First Respondent

manage these businesses on my behalf.

[ had no reasen to expect that irregularities or mismanagement might
occur in the execution of such duties by the First Respondent. |
placed all my trust in the First Respondent and its employees to

properly and effectively carry out the mandate | had givan them.
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Ad paragraph 24.4

I did not proffer my extensive traveliing and absence from the country as a

reason why prescription would be delayed.

Ad paraaraphs 24.5. 24 6 and 24.7

541

54.2

543

The unacceptable and unprofessional manner in which the First
Respondent handled the request for information from the tax
authorities in the USA (as referred to in paragraph 22 of ‘the faunding
affidavit) was the only reason why [ had decided 1o sever all ties with

the First Respondent.

Af that stage { had no reason lo invesligate the Second or Third

‘Applicants’ financial affairs.

It was only in 2010, after Clasto Konsultante had notifiad the Second
and Thir-d Applicants that it would no longer act as management for
these companies, which occurrence in due course ~Ied to the
discovery of the unsatisfaciory and disconcerting aspects relating fo '
lhe Second Applicant's business (as explained in paragraph 25 of the.

founding affidavit), that | took the decision to cenduct a iull forensic
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investigation into the financial affairs of both the Second and Third

Applicants.

As stated above, the further inconsistencies  and apparent
irregularities with regard to the conduct of the Second and Third
Applicants' .business, to which 1 have alluded in the founding affidavit,
were only disclosed during the subsequent forensic investigation

which Lombard had commenced in.Juty 2010.

[ had no reason to suspect that Erregulariiies, of the nature and extent

* that Lombard has discovered, had cccurred during the time that 1 had

entrusied the Applicants’ as well as my own affairs,'to the First

Respondent.

55,  Adparagraphs 24.8 and 24.9

561

i deny the allegations and legal conclusions in this paragraph, for the

reasons as set out in the preceding paragraph,

{ have in any event been advised that this is a matier that could only
be properly considered by this Honourable Court after a full
disclosure of all the relevant facts and circumstances, especiatly

having regard to the provisions of section 12(1), (2) and (3} of the
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Prescription Act, No. 68 of 1989, It woudd therefore be premalure to
expect this Honourable Court to adjudicate on the issue of

prescription at this stage.

Ad paragraph 24.10

56.1

56.2

56.3

| still have insufficient knowledge of the identity of the deblor, or the
full facts fromn which the debt in question arose, to prosecute a claim
against any debtor for the recovery of lost or misappropriated funds,
as referred to In paragraph 55 of the founding affidavit. The fact ihat
there appears fo be _grounds for the existence of a claim of this
nature, only came to my knowledge after Lombard had commenced

his investigation.

The First Respondent's recalcitrance in failing to comply with the
request for access to its records, has prevented the Second and Third

Applicants from becoming aware of such facts.

The implication of the Respondents' suggestion in this paragraph is
startiing — | should have investigated the manner in which the First
Respondent had performed its duties, even before | terminated its
mandate, and nol have proceeded on the assumption that they would

have performed such” duties with the nscessary care, skill and
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professionalism as could be expected from a reputable institution

such as the First Respondent.

Ad paragraphs 24.11 and 25

! deny 1he allegations in these paragraphs, for the reasons as set out above.

Ad paragraph 26

{ deny the allegations contained in this paragraph, particularly the allegation
that the Réépondents have adopted a "co-operative affitude”. The Applicants
are fully entitled to seek confirmation that all the rental payments that had
neen collected on their behalf, had in fact been paid by the First Respondent
into the various accounts it had created for this purpese, and to recover any

missing and/or misappropriated funds.

Ad paragraphs 32,1 and 43

It was discovered that, during 1994, David Newham Properties had failed 0
nay to the Second and Third Applicants, significant amounts of rental it had
collected on behalf of the Applicants. it was also discovered that Claste
Konsultante was never registered as an estate agent and could therefore not

have accepted and retained deposits it had received from the Second and
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Third Appticants’ tenants.

Ad paragraph 33.2

50.1

£0.2

6G.3

50.4

As stated in paragraph 52 of the founding affidavit, no response had
heen received to the formal request for information (annexures “J1" Lo

"J4M.

| have been advised that as a conseguence the Respondents are, in
terms of the provisions of section 58 of PAIA, regarded as having

refused the request.

Accordingly, section 78{2){(d) of PAIA which deals with a requestor
who is aggrieved by a decision of the head of a private body, does

not apply 1o the present matter,

In any evert, during a telephonic conversation between Mr Joubert of
Millers lnco.rporated and Ms Barbara Botha of the Firsl Respondent,
when the formalities that a requester had to comply with were inter
alia discussed, an agreemant was reached that the First Respondent
would not raise “technical points® in opposition to the application. In
conlirmation of this agreement, | annex hereto marked "M a.copy of

a letter dated 22 March 2012, which Mr Joubert had addressed 1o Ms




G1.

B2

Page 35

Botha.

60.5 Alter the application had been served on the Réspondents, the First
Respondent took the position that they had nolified my legal
representatives (Millers Incorporated) of their decision to refuse the
raquest. However, Millers Incofporated had not received any such
notification. Communications between Millers  Incorperated and
the Respondents’ alforneys (Eezuédenhout Van Zyl & Associates
incorporated) ensued in this regard and cuiminated in an agreement
that the Respondents would not rely on any alleged non-comptiance

- with the prescribed formalities or any other technical defence.

Ad paragraph 33.3

[ deny the allegations conlained in this paragraph. in any event, as already
indicated above, the First Respondent had agreed not to rely. on any

technical defence.

Ad paragraph 36

62.1 Audit procedures of the nature as referred to in this paragraph, are
normally conducted on a "sémp!e" basis. Not each and every bank

statement would be analysed, in contrast to a forensic audit where
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avery bank statement is under scrutidy.

Lombard’s investigation has already revealed that at Iéast two
significant amounts, being rentai payments that the First Respondent
should have received and paid into the Second (or the Third)
Respondent's bank account, cannot be accounted for in the accounts
that the First Respondent had created for the Second and Third
Applicants. { reler 'in this regard to paragraph 41 of the founding

affidavit,

| also draw attention to ihe fact that four of the aécounts in guestion
commenced with a nil balance on 1 January 1986. From an
accounting/auditing point of view, this is fotally unacceptable and
indicative of the inaccuracy and unreliabilily of t:gl_e statemernits. The
Respondents' attemnpt to explain this {in paragraph 48.1 5f the

replying affidavit} is unconvincing and unacceptable.

Ad paragraph 37.1

| admil the allegations in this paragraph. Representatives of the First

Respondent were previously appointed as directors of the Second and Third

Applicants. -
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Ad paragranh 37.2

The managing agent was only responsible for the collection of rental. | stand
by my assertion that the First Respendent continued lo manage and
administrate the Second Applicant's business, as well as the Second and

Third Applicants’ respective property portfolios.

Ad paragraph 37.3

85.1 1 deny that | neglected my duties as a director of the Second and

Third Applicants. .-

85.2 My personal circumstances at that stage was the very reason why |
had instructed the First Respondent to continue the functions and
duties it had already been mandated to perform in respect of the

. Second and Third Applicants, as referred to above.

Ad paragraph 3¢

| stand by my assertion that all the administrative and accounting functions
previously performed by the First Respondent in respect of the trust, were

outscurced to Clasto Konsuitante.
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Ad paragraph 40.2

It is surprising that after the winding-up of the estate had been completed,
the First Respondent continued to use the “estafe accounts” it had created
for the Second and Third Appliéants, in the winding-up pfocess, for the
purposes of the subseguent day to day conduct of the respective businesses

of these companies.

Ad paragraph 41

Visser Louw performed an accounting function, which is vastly different from
a forensic audit. In any event, Visser Louw did reveal the unsatisfactory and
disconcerting aspects in regard to the Second Applicant's business, as

referred to in paragraph 25 of the founding affidavit.

Ad paragraph 45.2

6¢.1 It is significant that no account numbers in accordance with the
"Tams” system have been aliocated {o the accounts as referred 1o in

paragraphs 27.1 to 27.4 of the founding affidavit.

69.2 Even more significant is the First Respondent's silence in the

answering affidavit in respect of this omission.
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Ad paragraph 47

The arduous nature of the task to.coﬂate the statements is now raised for the
first time in an attempt {o excnerate the First Respondént for its patent
failure to comply with the detailed request for statements, as set out in
annexures "C1" to CG if this was in fact at that stage the reason for such
failure, one would have expected the First Respendent at the very least to

explain it to Lombard in the e-mail of 13 October 2010.

Ad paragraph 48,1

| deny the alleged attempt "to have meetings”. The First Respondent had a
proper understanding of what had been requested. This™ was made
abundanily clear in the exchange of correspondence between Lombard and
the First Respondent's representatives. There was no need to have such a

meeting.

Ad naragraph 48.3

With hindsight, Lombard should have enguired as lo the reason why the
missing statements that were stored on microfiche fiim, were kept at branch

ievel. This might have been the case with conventiona! bank statements in
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respect of bank accounis that were conducted by ciients at the Second

Respondent's various branches countrywide,

73. Ad paragraph 49.1

73.1 | reiterate that, from an accounting and audiling perspective, this

axplanation does not make sense and is unacceptable.

73.2 In ény event, the explanation now proffered by the Respondents was
not apparent from the statements that had been provided by the First

Respondent {which is still the case);

73.3  There is no indication whatsoever tha! closing balances have been
ransferred or brought forward from previous statements. The
amounts 1hét have been recorded after the zero opening balances,
are rounded off and not whal one would have expecied from
operational accounts. To illustrate this, | annex hereto marked "N an

example of a statament that commences wilh a zerc balance.

74.  Adparagraph 49.3

"I smphasise that, after receipt of Ms Botha's e-mail of 23 May 2011

{annexure "G" to the founding affidavit), it was never the First Respondent's
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* excuse thai the missing statements did not exist. if the missing statements

do not exist, one would havé expected the First Respondent to state this

unambiguously.

Ad paragraph 52.2

| deny that the recourse to the Second Hespondent's trust banking account
was suggested as an option at that stage. This was mentioned as an opticn
at a later stage, affer the microfiche films that confained the missing
statements had been located. Moreover, it would only havé been necessary
to resort to this modus aperandiin the event of the "reader” not being able to

read stuch records.

Ad paragraphs 52.3t0 52,5

I stand by my assertion that the missing stalemenis that Lombard had

requested in terms of annexure "E” had not been made available.

Ad paragraph 53

| reiterate that there was no need for this request. At that stage, having
regard to the mesting of 4 February 2011 as well as the subsequent

exchange of communication, there could nol have been any uncertainty on
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the part of the -First Respondént, in regard to which statements were stil

missing.

Ad paragraph 54.2

| reiterate that no response was received to the formal request for
documents. Annexure "AAZ2" to the answering affidavit was transmilted 1o
Millers Incorporated for the first time aller service of the application on the

Respéndenis.

Ad paragraph 55.3

79.1  As explained above, the statements that were created in respect of
the Second and Third Applicants should reflect all the monetary
transactions that were concluded on their behalf, which is not the

case.

79.2 There is a vast discrepancy between the rental statements that had '

been issued by David Newham Properiies and, subsequently, Clasto
Konsultante, in respact of rentals received on behalf of the Second
and Third Applicants on the one hand, and lhe rentals received, as
recorded in the statements created by the First Bespondent, on the

olher.
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Ad paragraph 56.1

I deny the allegations in this'paragraph. The discrepancies have been

described in paragraphs 37, 40 and 41 of the founding affidavit (read with

annexures "E1", "E3" and "D4" theretfo).

Ad paragraphs 60.3 ic 66.5

81.1

81.2

| deny that the response from Millers Attorneys did not deal with the

- substance of the fechnical complaints that were raised by the

Respendents in annexure "AA3",

It is surprising that the First Respondent failed to disclose the {act
that the parties’ respective atiorneys met on 11 April 2012, when the
material isswes raised in annexure "AA3" were discussed,
Unfortunately no solution could be reached, which | submit was sclely
dus to the First Respondent's recalcitrant refusal to supply the

missing staterments.

COMNCLUSION

82.

I stand by my asserfion that the Second and Third Applicants and | are
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entitled to the refief sought in terms of the notice of motion, for the reasons

as set out in the founding affidavit,

83.  lastly, | refer to the affidavits of Messrs Joubert and Lombard and Ms Fowlie
filed herewith, in confirmation of their involvemeant in the matters | have

referred to in this affidavit.
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FNEB TRUS? SERVICES (PROPMETAQY) LIMITED
(Registration No. 1986/003488/07)

PEGMA MINERALE (PTY)

FIRSTRAND BANK LIMITED
(Registration No. 1929/001225/08)

Case No: 10045/2012

First Applicant
Second Applicant

Third Applicant .

First Respondent

Second Respondent

NOTICE OF S5ET DOWN

BE PLEASED TO TAKE NOTICE THAT the abovementioned matter has been

set down for hearing in the above Henourable Court, to be heard on the 26t° day

of March 2013 at 08h00 ¢r as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard.

DATED at__bigmrdiior on this the

ERASMUS DE KLERKING
Appiicant Attorneys
Ground Floor, Block 8
Pendoring Office Park

285 Pendoring Road

Blackhesth
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AND TO: FNB TRUST SERVICES {FTY) LTD

First Respondant
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Fredman Drive, Sandown
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sty

-"rj - P
mgﬁf?,;if f =

Ruenehmd withing fr
F mgfﬁaﬂ 5 E_af‘i’ :

19’7§}}€){’1?§2‘it1a’4

; /ﬁ./f

Numgﬂ 4 -
" - s

]

;f smﬁfﬁ‘“ *’L“‘”’




{
i
108452012 ; Case No. {year firgs s.gy. 8271

M___m_,"___m___.h.“__..M%_:f;@;_@ﬂaczzg_%_ww.j_m_.”_m_mi_f.-z-zzaef_igegzegq , ‘
e |V ompessaiop (appose
| .
————— Lesalypoties OPTIONS)
ANALIZE VAR TONDER ' FIRST APPLICANT i NAMES OF PARTIES
WEMA BELEGGINGS {PTYYLTD SECOND APPLICANT
PEGSMA MINERALE {PTY} LT FTHIRD APPLICANT

[E— LﬁA*wm.u%"-um_.wm_.-.um._&“. —— e \__._.‘,,.,,.__-A_A,.‘_-_.,___‘ﬁm.__..,! .,__._.uﬂm...%-—_.._..-u...__h__.,..m..u_“..u_r_dw__,.m..mﬁ,___._._‘,.._

i
Versus ’ j {Sumama, then initials -~
FNE TRUST BERVICES {PRGPRZET&R‘{) LIITED !, Tet Plaimif{ and st Defendart anty)
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FIRSTRAND BANK LIMITED
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LIty e LY e L L ITERITEENY e BT T ———
N/A _l Figeon hole ng.

T S s
TEBvorce 0 Default Judgment T iaterfocutary R Rehabfitation T

N Rule 43 & Bummary Judgment CE Interdiot B Surrender

C Custody . B Pravigional Judgment - H Review PS Provisional Sequestrating

F Interdicr - & Other ispecify) V Declaratory FS Final Sequestration

FL Final Liguidation

HOTICE BF SETBOWH
SOUTH GAUTENG HIGH COURT, SJOHARNESBURG
To The Registrar:

Kindly set the above mattar down i aceordancs with tha
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Signed at JOHANNESBURG on the 7 * day of March 2013,
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